
 

TOWN OF MORAGA PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, August 2, 2010 
7:30 PM 

 

Moraga Library Meeting Room at 
1500 Saint Mary’s Road, Moraga California 94556 

 
All documents relating to the following agenda items are available for public review in the Planning Department of the 
Town of Moraga at 329 Rheem Blvd. between the hours of 9 to 12, Monday, Tuesday and Thursday (other times by 
appointment).   Staff reports will normally be available on the Monday afternoon one week preceding the meeting.  It is 
recommended that you contact the Planning Department at 925-888-7040 for availability. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 Planning Commission 

A. Driver, Levenfeld, Obsitnik, Richards, Socolich, Whitley, Wykle 
B. Conflict of Interest 

 
II. ADOPTION OF MEETING AGENDA 
 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

This part of the agenda is to receive public comments on matters that are not on this agenda.  Comments received will not be acted upon 
at this meeting and may be referred to a subcommittee for response. Comments should not exceed three minutes. 
 

IV. ADOPTION OF THE CONSENT CALENDAR  
Items on the Consent Calendar are believed by staff to be non-controversial. Staff believes that the proposed action is consistent with the 
commission's instructions.  A single motion may adopt all items on the Consent Calendar.   If any commissioner or member of the public 
questions any item, it should be removed from the Consent Calendar and placed in part IX of the Regular Agenda. 

 

A. July 19, 2010 Minutes 
 
V. PUBLIC HEARINGS   

Opening remarks by an applicant shall not exceed ten minutes.  Comments by others shall not exceed three minutes.  The purpose of a 
public hearing is to supply the Planning Commission with information that it cannot otherwise obtain.  Because of the length of time that 
the Planning Commission meetings frequently consume, please limit testimony and presentation to the supplying of factual information.  In 
fairness to the Commission and others in attendance, please avoid redundant, superfluous or otherwise inappropriate questions or 
testimony.   
 

GRADING and HDP 01-10  Mr. and Mrs. Robert White (Owner/Applicant), 32 
Buckingham Drive:  Application for a hillside development permit and grading permit to 
grade a hillside with a slope greater than 25% including an approximately 50 cubic yard 
excavation for an in-ground storage building and related improvements. In accordance 
with Moraga Municipal Code Section 14.16.020, the Planning Commission shall make a 
recommendation to the Town Council regarding the proposed application. The work that 
is the subject of this application including the hillside excavation and partial storage room 
construction was commenced without the benefit of any Town approvals. The Town will 
evaluate the proposed application as if the work had not been started. This application 
will receive no special consideration because it was started without permits. The 
property is zoned 3 dwelling units per acre.  APN:  256-203-012. 
 

VI. ROUTINE & OTHER MATTERS  
The following items do not require a public hearing, although the Chair or staff will indicate why each item is on the agenda.    Public 
participation will be limited and the Commission may decide to reschedule the item as a public hearing.   Discussion of administrative 
matters, such as adoption of findings, may be limited to the Planning Commission. 
 



 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS – None 
 
VIII. REPORTS 

  
 A. Planning Commission 

1. Jim Obsitnik, Chair 
2. Russell Driver, Vice Chair 
3. Stacia Levenfeld 
4. Dick Socolich 
5. Bruce Whitley 
6. Tom Richards 
7. Roger Wykle 
 

 B. Staff 
1. Update on Town Council actions and future agenda items. 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
To a regular meeting of the Planning Commission on Monday, August 16, 2010 at 7:30 P.M. at the Moraga Library 
Meeting Room, 1500 Saint Mary’s Road, Moraga, California. Notices of Planning Commission meetings are posted at 
2100 Donald Drive, the Moraga Commons, and the Moraga Public Library. 
 
NOTICE:  If you challenge a town’s zoning, planning or other decision in court, you may be limited to raising 
only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission at or prior, to the public hearing.  Judging review of 
any town administrative decision may be had only if petition is filed with the court not later than the 90th day 
following the date upon which the decision becomes final.  Judicial review of environmental determinations 
may be subject to a shorter time period for litigation, in certain cases 30 days following the date of final 
decision. 
 
The Town of Moraga will provide special assistance for disabled citizens upon at least 24 hours advance notice to the 
Planning Department (888-7040).  If you need sign language assistance or written material printed in a larger font or 
taped, advance notice is necessary.  All meeting rooms are accessible to disabled. 
 
Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to each item of business referred to on the 
agenda are available for public inspection the 5th day before each regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting 
at the Planning Department, located at 329 Rheem Boulevard, Moraga, CA.  Any documents subject to disclosure that 
are provided to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the Town Council regarding any item on this agenda after the 
agenda has been distributed will also be made available for inspection at 329 Rheem Boulevard, Moraga, CA during 
regular business hours. 



TOWN OF MORAGA 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
Moraga Library Meeting Room        July 19, 2010 
1500 Saint Mary’s Road  
Moraga, CA  94556   7:30 P.M. 

MINUTES 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

Vice Chairman Driver called the Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission to 
order at 7:30 P.M.   

 
  ROLL CALL 
 

Present: Commissioners Levenfeld, Richards, Socolich, Whitley, Driver     
 Absent: Commissioner Wykle, Chair Obsitnik     
 Staff:  Lori Salamack, Planning Director  
     
 B. Conflict of Interest 
 

There was no reported conflict of interest. 
 

II.      ADOPTION OF MEETING AGENDA 
 
On motion by Commissioner Whitley, seconded by Commissioner Levenfeld and 
carried unanimously to adopt the meeting agenda, as shown. 
 

III.       PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 There were no comments from the public.   
 
IV.      ADOPTION OF THE CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
 A. June 21, 2010 Minutes 

 
On motion by Commissioner Socolich, seconded by Commissioner Richards and 
carried unanimously to adopt the Consent Calendar, as shown. 
 

V.  PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

A. CUP 09-10 Moraga Country Club HOA (Applicant) Terry and Linda 
Gong (Owner) Moraga Swim and Tennis Club, 1161 Larch Avenue: 
Conditional use permit for a temporary swim, snack, fitness and 
administrative use of the existing swim club.  No tennis use is proposed at 
this location.  APN 258-600-001. 

 



Town of Moraga Planning Commission 
July 19, 2010 
Page 2 
 
 

Planning Director Lori Salamack presented the application for a conditional use 
permit for a temporary swim, snack, fitness and administrative use of the existing 
swim club.  No tennis use was proposed at this location.  She reported that on 
January 4, 2010 the Planning Commission had approved a conditional use 
permit to allow the demolition of the existing clubhouse at 1600 St. Andrews 
Drive and construction of a new clubhouse in the same location.  Due to the 
proximity of the pool and the clubhouse, it would not be possible to allow the 
operation of the swimming pool at the Moraga Country Club during the clubhouse 
construction.  The demolition of the clubhouse had been planned for September 
2010.  The proposed conditional use permit would allow the use of the existing 
swim facility for swim, snacks, fitness and administrative purposes while the new 
clubhouse was under construction.  No tennis use of the property had been 
proposed by the applicant but it may be possible to use the tennis courts for 
parking, if necessary.   
 
A conditional use permit had also been required to allow the temporary use 
because the subject property is in the Moraga Open Space Ordinance (MOSO), 
a recreational use is a conditional use in MOSO and the prior swimming use of 
the property expired when it had been discontinued for a period of more than one 
year.   
 
The project is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) under Section 15301, Existing Facilities.  A public hearing notice had 
been mailed to property owners within 300 feet of the proposed project site on 
July 9, 2010.  Staff had received no written comments or telephone calls on the 
application.  The Moraga Country Club had held a meeting on the proposal and 
staff was unaware of any issues that had been raised by the neighbors.   
 
The draft resolution called for a 21-month temporary use until April 30, 2012.  
The time limit would allow ample time for the completion of the construction but 
only one summer swim season without further Town approval.  If construction 
were to be significantly delayed, it was recommended that the application come 
back to the Town for further consideration.  A condition of approval was also 
recommended for the hours of operation from 6:00 A.M. to 9:00 P.M. weekdays 
and 8:00 A.M. to 9:00 P.M. on the weekends.      
 
Ms. Salamack recommended that the Planning Commission adopt the draft 
resolution, subject to conditions with any changes as necessary.   
 
Commissioner Whitley understood that the former Moraga Swim and Tennis Club 
(MSTC) had a smaller facility than the current use and understood there were 
parking restrictions.  He asked whether or not that use pre-dated the 
incorporation of the Town and the imposition of any parking standards.   
 



Town of Moraga Planning Commission 
July 19, 2010 
Page 3 
 
 

Ms. Salamack explained that staff had not reviewed that issue although it had 
been reviewed as part of the residential subdivision application where there had 
been approximately 60 parking spaces.  Discussions had been held with the 
Moraga Country Club where the tennis courts may be utilized for parking.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Frank Melon, General Manager, Moraga Country Club, explained that they had 
printed out 20 to 30 letters that had been distributed to the neighborhood to solicit 
comments from the residents.  He acknowledged that there had been comments 
on traffic and as a result the Chief of Police had been invited to attend a meeting 
of the Moraga Country Club where issues with respect to speeding on Larch 
Avenue had been discussed.  He affirmed that there were no plans to use the 
tennis courts.  The goal was to have the new clubhouse and improvements to the 
swimming pool completed by November 2011.  He acknowledged that the largest 
mitigated use was swim meets which would not be held.  The swim club would 
be used by lap swimmers and children.  He reiterated that there would be no 
swim meets.   
 
Given the layout of the clubhouse, Mr. Melon explained that the parking lot was 
at a distance from the swimming pool and some of the fencing at the tennis 
courts would be removed with parking up to the tennis courts, essentially 
doubling the parking.   He noted that he had also agreed to pay for a radar cart to 
be stationed at all times to address the speed of traffic on Larch Avenue.  He 
emphasized that the use would be temporary.  He noted that Moraga Country 
Club had been a good neighbor for many years.   
 
Mr. Melon added that four to five people in their accounting division would also 
work out of offices as part of the temporary use of the existing swim club facility.  
Efforts would be made to ensure the property was not attractive to vandalism.  
He characterized the proposal as an effort to allow neighborhood children and 
the swim program to continue using the pool.   
 
Commissioner Whitley inquired of the number of swimmers who would 
participate during the National Swim Championships, to which Linda Gong, the 
property owner of the Moraga Swim and Tennis Club stated that during the peak 
periods approximately 150 swimmers had participated in the National 
Championship events. 
   
Commissioner Socolich clarified with Mr. Melon the intent that the temporary use 
would be for members only and would not be open to the public, which would be 
monitored by staff.  He added that their swim and tennis members were not 
separated with the goal not to be open to the general public.   
 



Town of Moraga Planning Commission 
July 19, 2010 
Page 4 
 
 

Commissioner Socolich recommended a condition that the facility would be for 
the use of Moraga Country Club members only.   
 
Commissioner Richards asked whether not guests would be permitted to use the 
facility, to which Mr. Melon affirmed that guests were permitted at a fee to the 
member of the Moraga Country Club.   
 
Clay Serrahn, 1160 Larch Avenue, Moraga, whose home was located directly 
across from the location of the existing swim club, expressed concern with 
parking and traffic.  He questioned how many vehicles the tennis courts could 
accommodate and suggested that overflow parking would occur in the residential 
areas as it had in the past.  He asked the Moraga Country Club to impress its 
membership to respect the residential neighborhood.  He was pleased that the 
Moraga Police Department would improve its enforcement of the posted speed 
along Larch Avenue and he urged the club members to also respect the posted 
speed.  
  
Karen Mendonca, 1160 Larch Avenue, Moraga, emphasized for the record that 
on-street parking in the neighborhood had been an issue in the past and needed 
to be addressed.  She urged that all on-street parking be discouraged with 
parking only within the Moraga Country Club.  She emphasized the problems 
with speeding along Larch Avenue, past efforts to install stop signs in the 
neighborhood which while well supported ultimately had not been recommended 
by the Traffic and Safety Advisory Committee (TSAC).  Neighbors had done 
everything they could to keep the street safe with Larch Avenue oftentimes used 
as a shortcut from surrounding neighborhoods.  She asked the Planning 
Commission to consider a stop sign coming out of the driveway to the club.   
 
Robert West, 1179 Larch Avenue, Moraga, agreed with the comments.  He also 
noted that Larch Avenue was in a deteriorated condition which was something 
the Planning Commission should be aware.  He agreed that a stop sign out of the 
driveway to the club would be a service to the residential neighborhood.  He 
otherwise questioned the fact that the Moraga Country Club had not reached out 
to its neighbors and he questioned how parking would be arranged at the tennis 
courts.  In addition, he questioned whether or not lights in the tennis courts would 
be adequate for evening parking.  Further, he suggested that 60 parking spaces 
would be ample for the swim members particularly absent any swim meets. He 
questioned the proposed signage given that MTSC would not be using the 
temporary facility and swim meets would not be held.   
 
Linda Gong, 1217 Larch Avenue, Moraga, the property owner, expressed her 
appreciation for all of the comments.  She clarified that the club had been built in 
1973 which pre-dated the Town's incorporation when there were no parking 
restrictions.   She commented on the efforts to subdivide the property at which 
time they would appear again before the Planning Commission.   



Town of Moraga Planning Commission 
July 19, 2010 
Page 5 
 
 

Ms. Gong noted that the Moraga Country Club had approached them about their 
plans for improvements.  As a member of the Moraga Country Club and a 
resident of Larch Avenue, she was aware of the comments regarding parking.  
She acknowledged that overflow parking occurred at the club during swim meets 
or large family events.  Otherwise vehicles only used the area for drop-off and 
pick-ups and it was rare that vehicles would park on the road leading to the club.  
She added that the tennis courts would include access at the corner court where 
it would not be difficult to remove fencing and arrange parking.  The tennis courts 
included 1,000 watt bulbs with plenty of lighting.  She recognized that as 
motorists exited the entrance to the club, they must be careful.  She was 
unaware of any accidents in that area.  She was confident that the Country Club 
would do everything it could to ensure that the area was safe.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED  
 
Vice Chairman Driver acknowledged a request for additional conditions that the 
existing swim club was to be used for members and guests only and that no 
swim meets were to be held.   
 
Commissioner Socolich supported additional conditions as proposed. 
 
Commissioner Richards was uncertain the additional conditions would be 
necessary. 
 
Commissioner Levenfeld was also uncertain that the additional conditions were 
necessary although she would support them if included. 
 
Vice Chairman Driver reiterated the recommendation for two additional 
conditions: 
 

i There shall be no swim meets with other teams held at this facility; and 
i The facility is restricted to Moraga Country Club members and their 

guests only. 
 

In response to Commissioner Whitley, Mr. Melon clarified that the radar cart 
would have a two to three day charge and may not be placed on a daily basis 
although the intent was that it be placed on-site as often as it could be used.   
 
Commissioner Whitley was not concerned with traffic either increasing or 
decreasing as a result of the use of the Moraga Country Club.  He noted that 
Moraga was designed to be semi-rural consistent with the General Plan’s intent 
to keep the community in a semi-rural character with semi-permanent signs.  A 
speed sign was not in keeping with that intent.   



Town of Moraga Planning Commission 
July 19, 2010 
Page 6 
 
 

Commissioner Whitley acknowledged the concerns with the speed on Larch 
Avenue but expressed concern with the parking of a neon-sign on one of the 
Town's streets.   
 
Vice Chairman Driver was comforted that the radar cart would not be operated by 
a diesel generator.  He acknowledged the concerns with traffic, speed and 
safety, which in his opinion outweighed the aesthetic concerns even if the device 
was placed for at least a year's time.   
 
An unidentified speaker from the audience understood that the radar cart would 
not be placed in one location and would be moved around.  He suggested that 
the neighborhood would appreciate its presence. 
 
Commissioner Levenfeld would support the radar cart if placed for safety reasons 
on a temporary basis since it would not be a permanent structure. 
 
Ms. Mendonca suggested that given the history of the neighborhood, many 
residents were likely not present since they were tired of telling the Town there 
was a problem.  Anything that could be done to increase safety was the right 
thing to do and showed the Town’s commitment to make the street safe. 
 
Mr. Melon further commented that there were ten current members of the 
Moraga Country Club who resided on Larch Avenue.  In an effort to keep all their 
members pleased while also being a good neighbor, he was confident there 
would be no on-street parking.  He emphasized that the tennis courts consisted 
of approximately 60,000 square feet which was ample for potential parking.    
 
On motion by Commissioner Whitley, seconded by Commissioner Socolich to 
adopt Resolution next in number to approve CUP 09-10 for the Moraga Country 
Club HOA at 1161 Larch Avenue, subject to the findings and conditions, as 
shown, and as amended with additional conditions, as follows: 
 

3. There shall be no swim meets with other teams held at this facility; and 
4. The use of the facility shall be restricted to Moraga Country Club 

members and their guests only. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Commissioners Levenfeld, Richards, Socolich, Whitley, Driver  

 Noes:  None  
 Abstain: None 
 Absent: Commissioner Wykle, Chair Obsitnik  

 
 



Town of Moraga Planning Commission 
July 19, 2010 
Page 7 
 
 

Ms. Salamack advised that there was a ten day right of appeal for anyone 
wishing to appeal the decision of the Planning Commission to the Town Council 
by submitting a statement and through the payment of an appeal fee, through the 
Planning Department.  
 

VI.   ROUTINE & OTHER MATTERS 
 

A. None 
 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. None   
 
VIII. REPORTS 
 

A. Planning Commission  
 

  There were no reports. 
 

B. Staff 
 

1. Update on Town Council actions and future agenda items. 
 

Ms. Salamack reported that the August 2 Planning Commission meeting would 
include a Hillside Development Permit with a recommendation to the Town 
Council for grading activity that had occurred absent a permit for property located 
on Buckingham Drive. If the application was approved, a variance may also be 
required for the property, which would have to be brought back for Planning 
Commission consideration at a future meeting.  Staff also planned to bring 
forward a draft ordinance for the California Green New Building Code which 
would have to be adopted by the Town Council to be effective in January 2011.  
Given the Town's Design Guidelines had a green building component, the draft 
ordinance would also be brought before the Planning Commission and the 
Design Review Board (DRB) in the fall.   
 
In addition Ms. Salamack advised that staff planned to complete the Hetfield 
Estates Environmental Impact Report (EIR) in late summer early or fall with 
public hearings to be scheduled before the Planning Commission.  Further, she 
reported on a recent article in About Town on the substantial increase in 
construction activity in the Town regarding administrative design review 
applications.  She reported that the Town was presently at a level that was 
typical for the year.   
 
 
 



Town of Moraga Planning Commission 
July 19, 2010 
Page 8 
 
 
XII.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

On motion by Commissioner Socolich, seconded by Commissioner Levenfeld to 
adjourn the Planning Commission meeting at approximately 8:18 P.M. to a 
regular meeting of the Planning Commission on Tuesday, August 2, 2010 at 7:30 
P.M. at the Moraga Library Meeting Room, 1500 Saint Mary’s Road, Moraga, 
California. 

 
A Certified Correct Minutes Copy 
 
 
 
Secretary of the Planning Commission  



Page 1 of 3 – Staff Report for 32 Buckingham 

        1 
     Meeting Date: August 2, 2010 2 

 3 
TOWN OF MORAGA                                                                              STAFF REPORT 4 
 5 
To:  Town of Moraga Planning Commission 6 
 7 
From:  Lori Salamack, Planning Director 8 
 9 
Subject:  GRADING and HDP 01-10  Mr. and Mrs. Robert White 10 

(Owner/Applicant), 32 Buckingham Drive:  Application for a hillside 11 
development permit and grading permit to grade a hillside with a 12 
slope greater than 25% including an approximately 50 cubic yard 13 
excavation for an in-ground storage building and related 14 
improvements. In accordance with Moraga Municipal Code Section 15 
14.16.020, the Planning Commission shall make a recommendation 16 
to the Town Council regarding the proposed application. The work 17 
that is the subject of this application including the hillside 18 
excavation and partial storage room construction was commenced 19 
without the benefit of any Town approvals. The Town will evaluate 20 
the proposed application as if the work had not been started. This 21 
application will receive no special consideration because it was 22 
started without permits. The property is zoned 3 dwelling units per 23 
acre.  APN:  256-203-012. 24 
 25 

 26 
Request 27 
Review the proposed project and make a recommendation to the Town Council for 28 
approval or disapproval or approval with conditions. 29 
 30 
Public Notice and Correspondence 31 
A public notice was mailed to the property owners within 300 feet of the proposed 32 
project site on July 23, 2010.  A copy of the notice, mailing list and area of notice map is 33 
attached as EXHIBIT A.   34 
 35 
Background 36 
In May 2009, town staff became aware of grading being done without a permit at 32 37 
Buckingham. Upon investigation, it was determined that a permit was required both for 38 
the grading and for the alteration of the hillside.  The current application is the result of 39 
approximately 14 months of working with the applicant to have the necessary 40 
documents submitted for consideration by the Town. Attached in EXHIBIT B is the 41 
correspondence between the applicants’ soil engineer and the town’s peer review 42 
consultant.  According to the June 14, 2010 letter from Cal Engineering and Geology all 43 



Page 2 of 3 – Staff Report for 32 Buckingham 

of the technical issues identified in the May 3, 2010 comment letter have been satisfied. 1 
The revised plans dated May 25, 2010 have also been corrected to be consistent with 2 
the comment letter.  3 
 4 
CEQA Compliance 5 
The project is categorically exempt in accordance with CEQA Section 15303 small 6 
structures. 7 
 8 
Discussion 9 
Photograph of the stopped construction are provided below.   10 

  11 
 12 

 13 
 14 
The existing rear yard retaining walls were constructed in 2006 following an approval 15 
from the Design Review Board.  As in this case, the 2006 walls were originally 16 
commenced without the necessary town approvals.  A copy of the 2006 Design Review 17 
Board staff report is attached as EXHIBIT C. 18 
 19 
 20 
 21 



Page 3 of 3 – Staff Report for 32 Buckingham 

 1 
 2 
In this case, the project requires both a 3 
hillside development permit and a 4 
grading permit.  Town Council action is 5 
required on the grading permit because it 6 
is proposed on a slope in excess of 25%. 7 
The fact that substantial work has 8 
already been done on this project without 9 
a permit does not change the required 10 
findings for this application. The factors 11 
to be considered in the issuance of a 12 
hillside development permit are 13 
discussed in EXHIBIT D. 14 
 15 
In addition, the findings required for 16 
approval of the grading permit are 17 
discussed in EXHIBIT E.  18 
 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 

 26 
 27 
Recommendation 28 
Consider the application and provide direction to staff for the preparation of a resolution 29 
recommending approval or disapproval by the Town Council EXHIBIT F. 30 
 31 
Exhibits: 32 

A. Public Notice Map, Notice List and Public Hearing Notice 33 
B. Peer review comment letter and response 34 
C. 2006 Design Review Board staff report 35 
D. Hillside Development Permit consideration 36 
E. Grading determinations 37 
F. Draft resolution 38 
G. Plans 39 



Exhibit A 
Public Notice, Notice List and Public Hearing Notice 

 

 

  



PUBLIC MEETING 
 

  
 
 
YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT on Monday, August 2, 2010, at 7:30 p.m., in the 
meeting room at the Moraga Library, 1500 Saint Mary’s Road, Moraga, California 94556, the 
Planning Commission of the Town of Moraga will hold a public meeting to consider and make 
a recommendation to the Town Council on the following application:   
 

GRADING and HDP 01-10  Mr. and Mrs. Robert White (Owner/Applicant), 32 
Buckingham Drvie:  Application for a hillside development permit and grading 
permit to grade a hillside with a slope greater than 25% including an 
approximately 50 cubic yard excavation for an in-ground storage building and 
related improvements. In accordance with Moraga Municipal Code Section 
14.16.020, the Planning Commission shall make a recommendation to the Town 
Council regarding the proposed application. The work that is the subject of this 
application including the hillside excavation and partial storage room construction 
was commenced without the benefit of any Town approvals. The Town will 
evaluate the proposed application as if the work had not been started. This 
application will receive no special consideration because it was started without 
permits. The property is zoned 3 dwelling units per acre.  APN:  256-203-012. 
 

 
Owner  / Applicant 

 

Mr. and Mrs. Robert White  
32 Buckingham 

Moraga, CA 94556 
 

 
The plans for this project are available for public review at the Moraga Planning Department, 
329 Rheem Blvd, during normal business hours (Monday through Friday from 8 am to noon 
and 1 to 5 pm).  Comments regarding the proposed project can be submitted in writing or 
orally at the public meeting.  Written comments submitted to the Planning Department will be 
given to the Planning Commission on the night of the meeting.  For additional information, 
contact the Planning Department at (925) 888-7040. 
 
Lori Salamack, Planning Director 



VICINITY MAP AND AREA OF NOTICE 
 
 

32 Buckingham Drive - White Residence 
 

File Number:  HDP-01-2010 
 
 

Legend
0 20 40 60

Feet

 
 

0 204060

Feet
Legend

 



HDP-01-10
Mailed Public Notice

 32 Buckingham Drive
Mailing List

Hillside Development
Permit

APN NAME ADDRESS CITY & ZIP
256203011 Rudolph H & Eldene L Mortensen     PO BOX 6401  MORAGA , CA 94570 6401
256024006 Laura M Diaz 12   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2407
256024007 James C Philip 14   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2407
256203014 Joel Chiu 88   MOSS BRIDGE LN ORINDA , CA 94563  
256203012 Robert A & Claudia E White 32   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2407
256203013 Frank Yun Quan Pan 26   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2407
256030002 Rheem Valley Properties Llc 190   N WIGET LN, Apt.#101 WALNUT CREEK, CA 94598 2440
256203008 Sandra K North 56   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2407
256203009 Mohsen Pazooki 50   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2407
256203010 Anthony C Carpentieri  44   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2407
256204007 Alan B & Carmen G Mould 9756   WESTBURY CIR HIGHLANDS RANCH , CO 80129 6930
256204006 Elaine E Sellers  49   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2406
256204005 James F Woidat  43   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2406
256204004 Sarah Weingarten  39   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2406
256023021 Olst Eric & Jessica Van 11   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2406
256023020 Douglas C & Cynthia A Redinger 15   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2406
256204003 Wesley E Jones 35   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2406
256023019 Jaroslaw & Eva Gryko 17   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2406
256204002 William I Levyn     PO BOX 6567  MORAGA , CA 94570  
256204001 Wayne L & Susan Q Chan 23   BUCKINGHAM DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2406
256204009 Michael H Rose 48   WOODFORD DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2429
256204010 Thomas B & Judith Gosnell 46   WOODFORD DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2429
256204011 Xinli Yang 40   WOODFORD DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2429
256204012 Richard E & Paula J Bonitz 34   WOODFORD DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2429
256204013 Ascencion Jr Portillo  28   WOODFORD DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2429
256204014 Rodger G & Karen Ng Lum 22   WOODFORD DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2429
256023017 Brian P Ahearn  3   CAMELFORD CT MORAGA, CA 94556 2408
256023018 Dean B & Diane Y Thomas 16   WOODFORD DR MORAGA, CA 94556 2429



Exhibit B 
Peer Review Comment Letter and Response 

 

  











































Exhibit C 
2006 Design Review Board Staff Report 

 

 

  























Exhibit D 
Hillside Development Permit Consideration 

 

 

  









Exhibit E 
Grading Determinations 

 

 

  















Exhibit F 
Draft Resolution 

 

 

 

 

  







Exhibit G 
Plans 

 


